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Department of Energy 970.2303–3 

Inclusion of this contract clause ap-
plies to contractors that are respon-
sible for the management and oper-
ation of the DOE’s facilities or the con-
duct of mission operations at the De-
partment’s facilities, including ele-
ments of the National Nuclear Security 
Administration (NNSA), the Power 
Marketing Administrations, and the 
National Laboratories. All such con-
tracts should also include the following 
clauses: FAR 52.223–2, Affirmative Pro-
curement of Biobased Products under 
Service and Construction Contracts; 
FAR 52.223–10, Waste Reduction Pro-
gram; FAR 52.223–XX, Compliance with 
Environmental Management Systems 
(see 923.903 regarding the applicability 
of this clause to specific DOE con-
tracts); FAR 52.223–15, Energy Effi-
ciency in Energy Consuming Products; 
and FAR 52.223–17, Affirmative Pro-
curement of EPA-designated Items in 
Service and Construction Contracts. 

[75 FR 57695, Sept. 22, 2010] 

970.2303 Hazardous materials identi-
fication and material safety. 

970.2303–2–70 General. 
(a) The Department of Energy regu-

lates the nuclear safety of its major fa-
cilities under its own statutory author-
ity derived from the Atomic Energy 
Act and other legislation. The Depart-
ment also regulates, under certain spe-
cific conditions, the use by its contrac-
tors of radioactive materials and ion-
izing radiation producing machines. 

(b) The inclusion of environmental, 
safety and health clauses in DOE con-
tracts shall be made by the contracting 
officer in accordance with this subpart 
and in consultation with appropriate 
environmental, safety and health pro-
gram management personnel. 

(c)(1) For DOE management and oper-
ating contracts and other contracts 
designated by the Senior Procurement 
Executive, or designee, the clause enti-
tled ‘‘970.5215–3 Conditional Payment of 
Fee, Profit, and Other Incentives—Fa-
cility Management Contracts’’ imple-
ments the requirements of section 234C 
of the Atomic Energy Act for the use of 
a contract clause that provides for an 
appropriate reduction in the fee or 
amount paid to the contractor under 
the contract in the event of a violation 

by the contractor or any contractor 
employee of any Departmental regula-
tion relating to the enforcement of 
worker safety and health concerns. The 
clause, in part, provides for reductions 
in the amount of fee, profit, or share of 
cost savings that is otherwise earned 
by the contractor for performance fail-
ures relating to worker safety and 
health violations under the Depart-
ment’s regulations. 

(2)(i) Section 234C of the Atomic En-
ergy Act states that DOE shall either 
pursue civil penalties (implemented at 
10 CFR part 851) for a violation under 
section 234C of the Atomic Energy Act 
(42 U.S.C. 2282c) or a contract fee re-
duction, but not both. 

(ii) The contracting officer must co-
ordinate with the Office of Price An-
derson Enforcement within the Office 
of the Assistant Secretary for Health, 
Safety and Security (or with any des-
ignated successor office) before pur-
suing contract fee reduction in the 
event of a violation by the contractor 
or any contractor employee of any De-
partmental regulation relating to the 
enforcement of worker safety and 
health concerns. 

[65 FR 81009, Dec. 22, 2000, as amended at 68 
FR 68782, Dec. 10, 2003. Redesignated and 
amended at 74 FR 36372, 36378, July 22, 2009] 

970.2303–3 Contract clauses. 

(a) When work under management 
and operating contracts and sub-
contracts thereunder is to be per-
formed at a facility where DOE will ex-
ercise its statutory authority to en-
force occupational safety and health 
standards applicable to the working 
conditions of the contractor and sub-
contractor employees at such facility, 
the clause at 48 CFR 970.5223–1, Integra-
tion of Environment, Safety and 
Health into Work Planning and Execu-
tion, shall be used in such contract or 
subcontract and made applicable to the 
work if conditions in paragraphs (a)(1) 
through (3) of this section, are satis-
fied— 

(1) DOE work is segregated from the 
contractor’s or subcontractor’s other 
work; 

(2) The operation is of sufficient size 
to support its own safety and health 
services; and 
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(3) The facility is government-owned, 
or leased by or for the account of the 
government. 

(b) The clause set forth in 952.223–72, 
Radiation Protection and Nuclear 
Criticality, shall be included in those 
contracts or subcontracts for, and be 
made applicable to, work to be per-
formed at a facility where DOE does 
not elect to assert its statutory au-
thority to enforce occupational safety 
and health standards applicable to the 
working conditions of contractor and 
subcontractor employees, but does 
need to enforce radiological safety and 
health standards pursuant to provi-
sions of the contract or subcontract 
rather than by reliance upon Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission licensing re-
quirements (including agreements with 
States under section 274 of the Atomic 
Energy Act). 

[65 FR 81009, Dec. 22, 2000, as amended at 74 
FR 36372, July 22, 2009] 

970.2305 Workplace substance abuse 
programs—management and oper-
ating contracts. 

970.2305–1 General. 
(a) The Department of Energy (DOE), 

as part of its overall responsibilities to 
protect the environment, maintain 
public health and safety, and safeguard 
the national security, has established 
policies, criteria, and procedures for 
management and operating contractors 
to develop and implement programs 
that help maintain a workplace free 
from the use of illegal drugs. 

(b) Regulations concerning DOE’s 
management and operating contractor 
workplace substance abuse programs 
are promulgated at 10 CFR part 707, 
Workplace Substance Abuse Programs 
at DOE Sites. 

970.2305–2 Applicability. 
(a) All management and operating 

contracts awarded under the authority 
of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as 
amended, are required to implement 
the policies, criteria, and procedures of 
10 CFR part 707, Workplace Substance 
Abuse Programs at DOE Sites. 

(b) Except as otherwise provided for 
in this subpart, management and oper-
ating contracts subject to the require-
ments of 10 CFR part 707 and this sub-

part shall not be subject to 48 CFR sub-
part 23.5, Drug Free Workplace. 

[65 FR 81009, Dec. 22, 2000, as amended at 75 
FR 68221, Nov. 5, 2010] 

970.2305–3 Definitions. 

Terms and words relating to DOE’s 
Workplace Substance Abuse Programs, 
as used in this section, have the same 
meanings assigned to such terms and 
words in 10 CFR part 707. 

970.2305–4 Solicitation provision and 
contract clause. 

(a) The contracting officer shall in-
sert the provision at 970.5223–3, Agree-
ment Regarding Workplace Substance 
Abuse Programs at DOE Sites, in so-
licitations for the management and op-
eration of DOE-owned or -controlled 
sites operated under the authority of 
the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as 
amended. 

(b) The contracting officer shall in-
sert the clause at 970.5223–4, Workplace 
Substance Abuse Programs at DOE 
Sites, in contracts for the management 
and operation of DOE-owned or -con-
trolled sites operated under the author-
ity of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, 
as amended. 

[65 FR 81009, Dec. 22, 2000, as amended at 74 
FR 36372, July 22, 2009] 

970.2306 Suspension of payments, ter-
mination of contract, and debar-
ment and suspension actions. 

(a) The contracting officer shall com-
ply with the procedures of 48 CFR 23.506 
regarding the suspension of contract 
payments, the termination of the con-
tract for default, and the debarment 
and suspension of a contractor relative 
to failure to comply with the clause at 
970.5223–4, Workplace Substance Abuse 
Programs at DOE Sites. 

(b) For purposes of 10 CFR part 707, 
the specific causes for suspension of 
contract payments, termination of the 
contract for default, and debarment 
and suspension of the contractor are: 

(1) The contractor fails to either 
comply with the requirements of 10 
CFR part 707 or perform in a manner 
consistent with its approved program; 

(2) The contractor has failed to com-
ply with the terms of the provision at 
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